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Dear Nigel,

Erroneous Transfer Customer Charter (ETCC) – Implementation Review

Please take this as the Innogy/npower response to the above (‘the document’). It can be placed on the Ofgem website.

As you know, npower was heavily involved in the formulation and promulgation of ETCC with Steve Watson, formerly of npower Yorkshire, chairing the industry working group which devised the supporting processes that underpin its operation.

We agree that reducing the level of ETs is important, not just because of the problems experienced by affected customers but that a high level of ET activity undermines confidence in supply competition. Also as you highlight, ETs are expensive for suppliers both in terms of time and cost.  Formalising what was previously an ad hoc set of arrangements has at least provided a baseline against which suppliers can work, as well as allowing Ofgem to assess each supplier’s performance more objectively than in the past.  

At the beginning of the document in the section entitled ‘Rationale’, you ask two questions:

‘Whether the current industry self governance structure is an appropriate mechanism to ensure protection for customers, or

Whether other regulatory measures are required to ensure that appropriate standards are met, for example through the introduction of a licence condition or guaranteed standards of performance’ 

Three options are then offered up: standards of performance; a licence condition, or self-regulation. However, what could be seen as pre-empting matters in the light of your request for comments on, and consideration of, responses to the document, you already propose a way forward with the statement that suppliers ought to develop and implement an industry standard compensation scheme where they breach the ETCC. This seems a little premature in the circumstances of a request for comments on the effectiveness of the Charter. 

Before dealing with issues raised by the document, 
I thought you might find it helpful if outline below the context in which the ETCC has been established over the past 8 months from a npower perspective. 

By way of background, over the past 20 months or so since the acquisition of Yorkshire Electricity and Gas’s and, subsequently, Northern Electric’s supply businesses, an integration process has been in place which will eventually bring together all three (inc. npower) companies’ systems. As you will appreciate, this is a mammoth undertaking that will take, in all probability, several years to complete. We have ‘bolted on’ ETCC processes to existing operations. While the arrangements are perhaps not ideal compared to those were we starting with a clean sheet, in the context of the other changes described, on the whole these have been successfully implemented. Indeed when you visited back in February, you indicated there were no major concerns as to how you felt we going to operate the ETCC on an ongoing basis. 

Additionally, in the light of the recent data request to ascertain how the Charter was operating, given that the period under scrutiny was only some four months after the introduction of the ETCC, on the whole, we feel that it is working satisfactorily. As the document itself says, because of the tight timescales for implementation problems did occur for some suppliers (and in this respect you specifically identify LE and BGT). We agree however that there is room for improvement and we are of course looking at ways to do this. 

Turning now to the document’s assessment of the success of the ETCC, you set out four criteria: 

(i) Have suppliers adopted the ETCC? It is self evident that they have and you state this is the case; 

(ii) Have all suppliers performed to ETCC standards? You say this is not the case and cite the fact that the escalation process is not used to resolve problems. For the reasons above, the process is relatively new and at a working level it is normally the case that issues are resolved there. However it has proved difficult to obtain an escalation list from some suppliers. All suppliers should provide an escalation matrix to each other in order that the process becomes more widely promulgated and used;

(iii) Has the ETCC had a positive effect on customers? As the process has been formalised with standard timescales for things to happen, the answer must be yes. What is still unclear is the extent of the improvement. This needs to be measured over a longer period than just the eight months that the Charter has been in operation;

(iv) Is the ETCC fit for its purpose? From a customer perspective, because the process is clearly defined, they should have greater confidence that they will be returned to their supplier of choice. From a supplier perspective, some of the timescales are challenging. Some suppliers have difficulty in re-registering customers after acceptance; there are problems with D086 dataflow in electricity as regards re-registration if they haven’t received the original closing D086. The two-day turnaround is very challenging, but this seems to be a problem for most suppliers. 

It is not clear from the document if there is room for unilateral supplier changes to aspects of the Charter to better fit their own system requirements (Paragraph 6.8 pp 27 ‘However, suppliers may choose to adjust some of the supporting requirements (for example the 2-day turnaround times that apply to the old supplier..). If this is the case and changes are needed, sufficient time should be allowed for them to operate before being assessed.

Regulatory Options

The document states that ‘suppliers have not yet (my emphasis) achieved a sufficient level of performance in respect of ETCC requirements that a customer can rely on in all cases.’ (Paragraph 7.1 pp28) The inference drawn from this is that, given time, suppliers could reach such a level. However the express view from Ofgem is that further measures are required. It would be helpful if this could be clarified. 

Taking each of the three options mentioned in turn.

Option 1: Standards of Performance. The case is not made for the imposition of guaranteed or overall standards. These are very prescriptive and would increase the regulatory burden. In addition, unless tightly defined on areas of actual weakness, they may not cure the mischief they are purported to target. One of the examples cited in the document is a standard (overall or guaranteed) that would apply where the 5 and 20-day letters were not sent out.  However, that these standards are met would not necessarily mean customers being sent back any quicker to their preferred supplier. Companies would understandably target their resources to meet the standard rather than dealing with the substantive issue of registering the customer back within a reasonable time.

Option 2: Licence Condition.  This again imposes an additional regulatory burden on suppliers. Also, this would require Ofgem to establish suitable monitoring arrangements, as it would have to be shown that any actionable breach was a systematic one based on repeated failures to conform to whatever benchmark was in place rather than a ‘one off’ or a genuine mistake on the part of suppliers. A new licence condition would have to be placed in Part C of suppliers’ licences. To do this would require legislation, which has still not been published by DTI, and subsequently licensees’ consent via a vote.

Option 3: Self-regulation. The status quo. This is npower’s preferred option. The Charter depends on supplier interaction; there has to be some degree of latitude in its application to recognise the differences in each one’s approach and their different systems in dealing with ETs.  As the document states, in electricity, the present approach under MAP010 has a thread leading back through the MRA to the supply licence and hence the ability for Ofgem to use its enforcement powers. That this not yet available in gas is a side issue: it will be when SPAA is adopted formally through gas supply licences; and, most suppliers deal with gas and electricity ETs under one process, therefore if a problem arises it is likely that both fuels will be affected. As Ofgem already has an enforcement route through the electricity supply licence, this should be sufficient incentive for suppliers to take the necessary remedial action that would also cover gas.

Next steps

Ofgem believes that because the ETCC has clearly defined responsibilities, failures in getting customers back to their preferred suppliers should result in compensation for the customer affected in two specific circumstances:

(a) where the 20 day letter has not been sent on time; and

(b) where registration is delayed more than 10 working days following the ET being confirmed.

The issue of compensation is a difficult one. The Charter places reliance on both parties complying to effect a successful transfer back in the required timescale. One party should not be penalised where it performs to the required standard, but the fault lies with the other in resolving the ET. Also, any compensation payments should be reasonable (ie are not punitive), applied commonly across all suppliers and clearly defined. For example, paragraph 5.26 pp19 of the document highlights the confusion amongst suppliers as to when 20-days begins in respect of that letter. In addition, monitoring would need to be introduced so as to trigger when compensation became payable. All this would need to be agreed by the industry. Given the relatively short timescale involved when Ofgem would like this scheme to be introduced (April 2003), this is challenging and the work may need facilitation by the regulator.

Conclusion

In answering the two questions at the beginning of this letter, npower supports the ETCC, we believe that the present self-governing arrangements are appropriate for both customers and suppliers, but that the additional regulatory measures discussed in the document and this letter (standards of performance or a licence condition) are not necessary.
I hope you find the above useful. 
Yours sincerely

Paul Tonkinson

Economic Regulation
Registered office:  Innogy plc, Windmill Hill Business Park, Whitehill Way, Swindon, SN5 6PB

Registered in England and Wales no:  3892782
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